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PROCEEDI NGS

M5. FORRESTER Good norning. M/ nane is
Jani ce Forrester. " mthe Revenue Program
Adm ni strator for the Technical Assistance section
in the Property Tax Oversight Program |'ll be the
noderator for today's hearing. M role as
noderator is to preside in a neutral nmanner.

Staff fromthe Departnent are here today to
recei ve comments on the proposed anendnents. At
this time, | would like staff to introduce
t hemsel ves.

M5. LEWS: Rene Lewis, Deputy Director in
Property Tax Oversi ght.

M5. HARPER  Jenna Harper, Conmpliance
Assi stance Process Manager.

MR JACKSON: Ant hony Jackson, Jr., Senior Tax
Speci al i st.

M5. HARLAN. Sue Harl an, Property Tax
Oversi ght Director

MR. TORNILLO Robert Tornillo, Director of
Legi sl ative Cabinet Affairs --

MR HAMLTON: WMark Ham |l ton, General Counsel
for the Departnment of Revenue.

MS. GOLDSTEIN:  Rachel Goldstein, |I'man

attorney wth the Departnent of Revenue.

OR THE RECORD REPORTI NG TALLAHASSEE FLORI DA 850. 222. 5491




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

M5. FORRESTER  Today is May 5, 2021 and this
is a public rule hearing schedul ed under subsection
(3) of section 120.54, Florida Statute. The
Departnent is holding this hearing to discuss the
draft anendnents to rules and form

The Departnent published three notices for
this public neeting in the Florida Adm nistrative
Regi ster: March 18, 2021, Vol une 47, Nunber 53,
Pages 1407 through 1408; March 22, 2021, Vol une 47,
Nunber 55, page 1439. For Rule 12-9.008, a Notice
of Change was published on March 18, 2021 in the
Florida Adm nistrative Register. The changes were
made in response to witten comments received from
the staff, the Joint Adm nistrative Procedures
Conmmi ttee, and public comments recei ved made a part
of the record fromthe rul e hearing conducted on
January 13, 2021.

For those at the conputer, the draft rules and
forms are posted on the Departnment's proposed rul es
page at Fl ori daRevenue.conmrules. Select the
property tax proposed rules drop-down at the bottom
of the page and then select the Chapter 12-9 I|i nk.

Il will now ask Anthony Jackson to expl ain the
process that we wll use for taking coments on the

agenda itens. Please note, the Departnent offices
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are still tenporarily closed to the public. This
hearing is taking place using el ectronic nedi a.

MR, JACKSON: Good norning, |adies and
gentlenen. |If you are attending this hearing using
your conputer, raise your hand using the icon on
the grab tab | ocated to the | eft of your control
panel. W w il address you when it's your turn to
speak. Pl ease state your nane and whom you
represent. |If you experience difficulty, use the
qui ck chat option to send ne a nessage.

If you are attending this hearing using the
option tel ephone with audio PIN and you have a
question or comment, please send an enmail to
dor pt o@ Il ori daRevenue.comto | et us know you w sh
to speak. W will address you by nane and unnute
your phone when it is your turn to speak.

If you are using the option "tel ephone with
no audio PIN' and you want to ask a question or
make a comment, please send an enail to
dor pt o@ Il ori daRevenue. com Pl ease use the subject
line "May 5 Hearing." |In the email, add your nane
and whom you represent. W wll acknow edge your
emai | or read your comment out | oud.

All comments received during the hearing wll

be recorded by the court reporter. Witten
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comments wll be posted to the proposed rul e page
wth the transcript. Thank you.

M5. FORRESTER W will take comments on each
agenda item Please tell us your nane and whom you
represent. W ask that you provide only comments
or suggested changes that are directly relevant to
the draft anendnent and the notice of change.

Pl ease hold all other general comrents until after
we have di scussed the agenda item

Il will now turn the hearing over to
Ms. Goldstein to present the draft rules and forns.

M5. GOLDSTEIN: Good norning. Today's public
hearing is intended to discuss the Departnment's
Noti ce of Change to the proposed rules and
associ ated forns referenced in Chapters 12-9 and
12D-16. 002 of the Florida Adm nistrative Code.
These rules and forns are related to the
Departnent's educati onal prograns for various
certifications including Florida Property
Appr ai sers and Florida Tax Coll ectors.

The narrow and |imted purpose of this round
of rulemaking is to bring the rule up to speed with
the Departnent's current practice and to address
out st andi ng JAPC conmment s.

Before today's hearing, this rule has
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undergone a substantial and | engthy public review
and comments process in accordance wth Chapter
120, beginning with the Rul e Devel opment Wr kshop
whi ch took place on January 23, 2019 for the
Departnent's solicited public comment, and nade
changes to the draft in accordance with those
comrent s.

The draft rule was again publicly workshopped
on Novenber 17, 2020, and subsequently went before
t he Governor and Cabinet in a public neeting on
Decenber 15, 2020 for approval to publish a notice
of proposed rule. Fromthere, the proposed rule
was | ast discussed in a public hearing on January
13, 2021.

The changes open for discussion today were
made in response to the coments received during
the | ast public hearing, and in response to
comments we received from JAPC

The way today's hearing is going to be
structured is I'"mgoing to go through each rule and
f orm one by one, summarize any changes, and then
" mgoing to open it up for nenbers of the public
to provide specific comments relevant to those
changes covered in each section of the rule.

If a section of a rule has no changes beyond
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m nor edits or grammatical variations, | wll

i ndi cate no change and open it up for comment
before noving to the next rule. W ask that any
coments provided be limted to those proposed
changes.

Now, if you will turn to the rule text, | wll
begin with Rule 12-9.001 entitled "Definitions."
So in this rule we renoved references to the
Departnent staff. After our |ast public hearing,
we recei ved comments regardi ng concerns about
Departnent staff certifications, and ultimately
decided to renove references to the staff fromthe
rule.

The course curriculumremi ns open and
avai |l abl e, optional to Departnment staff, but is not
required training. And since it is not required,
we renoved it fromthe rule. Therefore, the
Departnent staff wll no | onger be recommended for
certification by commttees or certified by the
Departnent vis-a-vis this program

Are there any comments on these changes to the
rul e?

MR JACKSON: Go ahead, Ms. Cucchi.

Ms. Cucchi, you can go ahead.
M. CUCCHI : Can you hear ne?
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MR, JACKSON: It |ooks like you're self-nuted.
There you go.

M5. CUCCHI : Can you hear nme?

MR JACKSON: Yes, nmm'am

M5. CUCCHI : GCkay. This is Sara Cucchi and
did have sone questions regardi ng the renoval of
DOR enpl oyees. You say it was in response to
comments. M comments were not certainly to renove
certification of DOR enpl oyees.

And if we go back to the hearing, what Rachel
had said in the hearing was that the statute reads
that 195.002, the Departnent is authorized to
conduct schools and training for state and | ocal
personnel. And she goes on to say, but we would
interpret that to include property appraiser staff,
tax collector staff, and Departnent staff. Then
she goes on to say that 195.002 goes on to say that
we al so have the authority to establish by rule
comm ttees for adm ssion and certification, and
that's immedi ately after the provision it tal ks
about schools for state and | ocal personnel.

Now t he DOR proposed rul es are renoving the
certification and training for state personnel, and
' mjust wondering if DOR still interprets that

they're required to certify property appraiser

10
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staff.

M5. GOLDSTEIN:. That we are required to, that
we're required to offer school.

M5. CUCCHI: That you are required to offer
school s but not to certify?

M5. GOLDSTEIN:. We have the option to certify.
If you read the statute it says nmay establish by
rules commttees.

M5. CUCCHI : |'mgoing to have coment on that
at a further tine.

MS. GOLDSTEIN:  Ckay.

M5. CUCCHI : And then basically, you know,
you' re saying that the conments nade were to
elimnate. | would recommend the Departnment still
offer certification to Departnent enployees, but
they do it in a separate section of the rule, with
separate requirenents, and not having property
apprai sers approve it. | don't think it's a good
idea not to certify DOR enpl oyees.

M. GOLDSTEIN:. Ckay. W'Ill take that under
advi senent .

M5. CUCCHI: The second thing is that in the
| ast hearing | had nentioned that there's two very
i nportant statutory terns required for DOR training

staff deci sions on course approval, and those are
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prof essionally accepted appraisal practices and
appropri ate apprai sal nethodologies. And |I'm
wondering why didn't DOR i nclude these definitions
for professionally accepted practices and for
appropri ate nethodol ogies in these proposed rul es?

M5. GOLDSTEIN: | don't know that | have a
specific explanation for you other than to say we
just declined to adopt that conment at this tine.

M5. CUCCHI : GCkay. Then I'd like to put that
coment back in because the next question would be,
how does DOR staff or anyone el se going to know i f
a course is properly approved if no one knows what
prof essionally accepted appraisal practices and
appropri ate apprai sal net hodol ogi es are?

MS. GOLDSTEIN:  Ckay.

MS. CUCCHI: Al so wondering how come you don't
have Uni form St andards of Professional Appraisal
Practices in there |i ke DBPR, and also why you
don't have a definition of code of ethics. | see
t hat you haven't done anythi ng of any ki nd of
apprai sal specific at the requirenent. And | know
ethics is part of USPAP, and there's a code of
ethics for I AAO and DBPR has ethical requirenments
for certified appraisers in training. Ethics is a

part of professionally accepted apprai sal practices

12
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i ncl udi ng et hical conduct when doi ng apprai sal s.

You had a code of ethics from 1973 to present
and | sinply recommended you update it. You seem
intent on elimnating this code and ignoring the
Governor's order for code of ethics with adjustnent
for programrequirenents and then you need
vari ables. Wy do you feel you can ignore the
Governor's order?

MR HAMLTON. M. Cucchi, as it relates to,
you're referring to -- this is Mark Ham | ton,
CGeneral Counsel. You're referring to Executive
Order Nunber 1911 that was previously issued by the
Governor. That specific order pertains, under
section one notes that it's specific to executive
branch agencies as well as the executive office of
the Governor. |It's not applicable to
constitutional officers and so it would not extend
to this rule.

M5. CUCCH : So you're saying that you don't
feel that you need to follow the Governor's order
because you're not an executive office?

MR HAM LTON: The Departnent is follow ng the
provi sions of the Governor's order, though what |I'm
saying is the Governor's order does not apply to

constitutional officers. In this case it extends
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to tax collectors, property appraisers, et cetera.

M. CUCCHI : The Governor can renbve property
apprai sers and tax collectors and has done so. |
think that the Governor could have a say in the
trai ning and code of ethics for people he can
renmove.

MR HAMLTON: Well, thank you for you
comrent .

V5. CUCCH : Ckay. Going down to 12 dash 001,
paren (9), Commttee Menbers, it's defined as
officials who serve on either adm ssions and
certification commttee. And 12-9.001(1), Oficial
or Oficials are individuals who are el ected or
appointed to office, and that's the county tax
coll ector and the property appraiser. Wy isn't
the DOR chairperson a committee nenber?

M5. GOLDSTEIN: I'mnot sure |I'mfollow ng
your questi on.

M5. CUCCHI: Commttee nenbers are defined as
officials. Oficials are defined as county
property appraisers and tax collectors. There's
nothing in there that says a conmm ttee nenber, and
the definition also includes the chairperson. |Is
the chairperson a nenber of the commttee?

MS. GOLDSTEI N: W'l take that under

14
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advi sement and | ook at the definitions again.

M5. CUCCH : Ckay. So then there's
12-9.001(9) as part of the commttee nmenbers, | am
recommendi ng that the chairperson be included as a
conmm ttee nmenber.

M5. GOLDSTEIN. Ckay.

M5. CUCCH : And just to reiterate nmy previous
comments which you did nothing about. 12-9.001(9),
a commttee of property appraisers voting to give
t hemsel ves a raise is wong. End of story.

MS. GOLDSTEIN: Ckay. Do you have any ot her
coment s?

M5. CUCCHI: That's all | have at this tine
for 12-9.001, but I wll have further comments
| ater.

MS. GOLDSTEIN: Ckay. W're going to nobve on
to 12-9.002. So in subsection (5), this change was
made in response to comments we received at the
| ast public hearing, where we clarified that in the
event that a president of a state associ ati on does
not hol d a professional designation as required by
the rule, he or she will appoint a desi gnee who
does hold such certification.

We al so added subsection (8), where we just

noved the duties of the chairperson in for this
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particular rule, and that was done in response to
one of JAPC s suggestions. Are there any coments
on this rule?

MR, JACKSON: You can go ahead, Ms. Cucchi.

M5. CUCCHI: Ckay. Again, the coment nade
was not to elimnate DOR enpl oyees from havi ng
certification. It was, and what can be done is, it
woul d be better to wite a separate rule section
for certification and certification requirenents of
DOR enpl oyees. It has nothing to do with property
appr ai sers.

And secondly with 12-9.002(5), you did add in
t he association of president's appointee. However,
you didn't say how |l ong that person would be -- how
|l ong that person's termwould be. So, in other
wor ds, you added in an extra person, you say
nmenbers are three years, the state association
president is one year, but you don't say the state
association president's designee is one year. And
| think that should be added to clarify the term--

M5. GOLDSTEIN: | would just respond that I
feel that that's inplied, but we'll take that
comrent into consideration.

M5. CUCCHI: | will have nore on 12-9.002, but

not at this tine.
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M. GOLDSTEIN:. Ckay. | just for one second,
if we could back up. 1In the previous Rule
12-9.001, the Definitions, if you | ook at
subsection (4), the definition of chairperson, the
| ast part of that sentence says "and is a nenber of
the commttee.” So we did clarify that point in
the definitions rule and | just wanted to point
that out on the record.

M5. CUCCHI : Well, you shouldn't have to go to
two different rules to see two different things. |
still contend that paren (9), commttee nenbers
shoul d al so have that the chairperson is also a
menber and it isn't just officials.

M5. GOLDSTEIN: Ckay. Thank you for your
commrent. Do you have anything further on this
rul e?

M5. CUCCHI: Not at this tine.

M. GOLDSTEIN:. Ckay. W're going to nove on.
Rule 12-9.003 entitled "Qualifications.” So here
in subsections (1) through (5), we clarified
approved course criteria be nore flexible and
explain that several courses on a particul ar
subject matter could be taken sequentially to add
up to satisfy, say, a thirty-hour or ninety-hour

coursework requirenent, you know, as opposed to
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having to find and take only one thirty-hour course
or one ni nety-hour course.

Changes made to subsection (6) were nade to
address comments we received at the | ast hearing
related to clarifying the details of our chall enge
process, so we updated that | anguage to expl ain how
the process works. W al so expl ai ned what
constitutes a passing grade on the different kinds
of course exam nations and how t he questions are
wei ghted and how the exam in graded.

Are there any comments on changes to this
rul e?

MR. JACKSON: You can go ahead, Ms. Cucchi.

M. CUCCHI: Thank you. 12-9.003(1), DOR s
rules delete "properly,"” quote, "properly" from
noni tored exam nations. Wy did DOR del ete
"properly" fromthe phrase "properly nonitored"
referring to nonitoring training certification
exans?

M5. GOLDSTEIN: Because there are no specific
requi rements for nonitoring the exans other than
t hat soneone be present to nonitor the exam

M5. CUCCHI: Does this nean DOR believes it's
acceptable to fail a properly nonitored exam to

fail to properly nonitor an exanf
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MS. GOLDSTEIN: I'mnot sure | understand that
questi on.
M5. CUCCHI : |If you have no requirenents and

sonebody who's just standing there and sonebody is
cheating on an exam there's not a requirenent to
say, hey, you know you can't cheat on an exam
we're just going to certify a person who cheats
anyway?

MS. GOLDSTEIN:  Well, no. That would be the
pur pose of having the nonitor present is to ensure
t hat woul d not happen.

M5. CUCCHI : But where is the thing that says
that, what's the criteria for the nonitor to be
saying this can't happen?

M5. GOLDSTEIN: | nean there are no specific
criteria, as | expl ai ned.

M5. CUCCHI : So this cane from JAPC. Does DOR
beli eve JAPC directed DOR to delete the term
"properly,"” or that JAPC sinply noted that the
el enents of nmonitoring exanms should be included in
the rule, which one is it?

M5. GOLDSTEIN:  Well, they questioned whet her
there were specific requirenents for nonitor, what
"properly” neant. And in this context it didn't

mean nuch of anything which is why we renoved it.
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The examis still required to be nonitored, but
"properly” is just superfluous. It doesn't nean
anything in this context.

M5. CUCCHI: "Properly" gives you criteria by
which to say you don't pass this examif you don't
meet the nonitor's requirenents. And you know, |
guess anot her question is, does DOR believe that
deleting "properly" fromthis rule will pronote
public trust or destroy public trust?

M5. GOLDSTEIN:. |I'mnot sure how to answer
t hat question, but we will accept your comments and
di scuss it.

M. CUCCHI : Wy does DOR nake the foll ow ng
ridiculous statenent to JAPC. "There are no
specific requirenents for nonitoring an
i nstructional course exam"”

Anyone who has ever taken or adm nistered an
exam knows there are required procedures that nust
be followed to ensure the examresults are accurate
and fair. Does DOR PTO nmanagenent really believe
and support these types of ridicul ous statenents?

M5. GOLDSTEIN:. | don't have an answer for
that, but if you want to submt, you know,
suggestions of what you would like to see in terns

of exam nonitoring, we would be happy to take
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t hose.

M5. CUCCH : Going on to 12-9.0031, it talks
about a person who is certified as an evaluator is
recogni zed as a Certified Florida Appraiser upon
taking office. What does the term "recogni zed"
nmean?

M5. GOLDSTEIN:. Well, we didn't -- so you're
tal ki ng about subsection (1)?

M5. CUCCHI : Yes.

M5. GOLDSTEIN. W didn't make any changes to
that particul ar subsecti on.

M5. CUCCH : But it's part of the rul e package
of the proposed rules and it is a change that was
made within the rules.

M5. GOLDSTEIN: It was existing at our | ast
public hearing. And this hearing is limted to the
changes that were posted back in March.

M. CUCCHI: You' ve already answered sone
questions that weren't part of the notice of
change, but they were posted back, and |I would
think there was comments that were nmade at the
ot her hearing that would still be relevant. This
seens to be a new, bad policy. Are you just naking
bad policy or are you | awering up?

M5. GOLDSTEIN. It's just outside of today's
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heari ng, outside of the scope of today's hearing.
So if I answered questions that were outside the
scope of the hearing it was a courtesy. And so if
you have anything to offer related to the changes,
we woul d be glad to take your suggestions and
comrent s.

M5. CUCCHI : Ckay. So for the record, you do
not want to hear ny comments on draft rul es that
t he Departnent posted on its website and announced
were going to be discussed in this public hearing,
is that correct?

MR HAM LTON: M. Cucchi, there's been
mul ti pl e opportunities for you to provide comments
to the Departnent. |If you have comments that you'd
li ke to submt, you can certainly feel free to
submt those comments and as you have in the past,
and as the Departnent has received and al so
identified and commented at prior hearings as well
as today. W're noving forward. Thank you.

M5. CUCCH : GCkay. At the January 13, 2021
hearing, Rule 12-9.003(4), there was a
recommendati on that there be a requirenent for a
course in Florida law. Wy did DOR choose not to
require a course in Florida | aw for

precertification?
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M5. GOLDSTEIN:. Al | can say about that is
that you know this rul emaki ng process is very
limted in its scope, and it's intended to get the
rule up to date with current practice and to
addr ess out st andi ng JAPC concerns.

We hear you. W understand that you want a
very specific, nore robust course curriculum but
it's just not sonething that we are undert aki ng
during this round of rulenmaking at this tine.

M5. CUCCH : Wy did DOR PTO training rules
excl ude any requirenent for property appraisers and
their staff to conplete required precertification
education in Florida-specific required subjects,
such as, Florida taxpayer rights, DOD training,
Uni form Pol i ci es and Procedures Manual, 194. 3015,
194. 301, Uni form Standards of Professional
Apprai sal Practice, the Code of Ethics of the
| nternational Association of Assessing Oficers,
prof essionally accepted appraisal practices for
appropri ate apprai sal net hodol ogi es under Fl ori da
| aw, the Governor's executive order on ethics,
calculating the |l evels of assessnments sent to DOE
each year for K through 12, school funding
di stribution anong counties, Florida Statutes

Chapters 192, 193, 194, 195, 196, and ot her
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rel evant Fl orida | aw?
M5. GOLDSTEIN: Ckay. Thank you for your

comments. Do you have anything further on this

rul e?
M5. CUCCHI : |Is Robert in the neeting?
MR, TORNI LLO | am
M5. CUCCH : | sent you that email and you did

send ne an email back, so | guess if they're not
going to answer it, |I'masking for you to answer
t he questions for ne.

MR, HAM LTON: Ms. Cucchi, if you have any
specific coments you can identify themon the
record, but, if there's no additional coments on
this particular rule, we're noving forward. Thank
you.

M5. CUCCHI : | have a couple nbre comments on
this particular rule. On 12-9.003(6), it requires
the presence of in the classroomfor all
instructional hours and passing the exam So the
question is, does a person who is not present for
all the required hours in the classroom but ends
up passing the exam are they still eligible to be
certified?

M5. GOLDSTEI N No.

M5. CUCCHI : Ckay. And the next question

24
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woul d be on (6)(b), there's a requirenent for a
30-day request before a course for chall enging an
exam for courses provided by DOR Let's say DOR
offers, I don't know, Course 101. Presumably, I
can chal |l enge the exam regardl ess of when DCR
offers the course. |I'mnot taking the course, |I'm
chal | enging the exam so why do | have to do this
thirty days before the course? Wat does
chal | engi ng exans have to do with DOR s schedul i ng
of the course if I'mnot taking the course?

think you' re going to agree that this is not well

t hought out and needs to be clarified.

M. GOLDSTEIN:. Ckay. W'Ill take that under
consi derati on.

M5. CUCCHI : And a final thing for now, on
12-9.003, is you put in a standard of 70 percent
for exam scores and that is |ower than DBPR It
makes governnent | ook bad. Wat is your
justification for a |lower standard than a private
appr ai ser?

MS. GOLDSTEI N: Wll, as | explained earlier,
we are preserving current practice. And that is
our current practice. W' re updating the rule, but
we w ||l consider maybe possibly raising that at a

| ater, future date
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M5. CUCCHI : | don't believe that was in here
before this notice of change, but I wll go back
and | ook at that. And | recommend it being 75
percent because that's what "professionally
accepted" required, and that's what DBPR does.

M5. GOLDSTEIN:. Ckay. Thank you for your
comrent .

M5. CUCCHI: | will have nore on 12-9. 003, but
not at this tine.

MS. GOLDSTEIN: Ckay. Myving on to Rule
12-9.0031 entitled "Approval of Courses."” Changes
made to subsection (1)(b) here were nade in
response to JAPC comments, and were to add in a
reference back to subsection (1) of the rule to
clarify what areas of expertise the courses are
required to inpart to be considered for approval.

Do we have any comments on the changes nmade to
this rule?

MR. JACKSON: You can go ahead, Ms. Cucchi.

M5. CUCCH : Gkay. |I'mwondering who at this
nmeeting is classified as the Departnent’'s training
staff, who is in attendance?

M5. GOLDSTEIN: | don't think that any of them
are.

M5. CUCCH : Ckay. So |I guess we don't have
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peopl e to answer the questions at the hearing.

MR. HAM LTON: What are your questions,
Ms. Cucchi? W'Ill be happy to answer those.

M5. CUCCHI : Well, I'mwondering if there's
anybody licensed by DBPR in the training staff to
have the expertise that would enable themto
determ ne professionally accepted apprai sal
practices and appropri ate net hodol ogi es.

M5. GOLDSTEIN: |1'mnot aware of that off the
top of ny head.

M5. CUCCHI : And then if the people were
present, | would have asked themto provide a
definition of professionally accepted apprai sal
practices and appropri ate net hodol ogi es that they
woul d use to determne if a course inparts such
experti se.

MS. GOLDSTEIN:  Ckay.

M5. CUCCHI : And the final -- no, no, not the
final comment. Another comment is that
deci sion-nmaking i s supposed to take place in the
sunshine. This refers to 12-9.0031(2)(a). Since
you are renovi ng approved courses fromthe rules,
is twenty days for course approval enough time for
DOR training staff to approve courses not on

noti ced public neeting?
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M5. GOLDSTEIN. Ckay. W wll take that under
consi derati on.

M5. CUCCHI: You do realize that you are
supposed to have these people in the hearing? That
is part of Chapter 120.54, the requirenent the
Departnent have people in the hearing that can
answer questions.

| asked questions in the |ast hearing and |
got no answers back, which is why | amrepeatedly
asking simlar questions in this hearing because |
don't know why ny questions weren't answered
bef or e.

MR HAM LTON: Ms. Cucchi, the Departnment has
responded at nultiple hearings related to comments
t hat have received -- you've provided and we have
received that relate to the specifics of the rule.
We appreciate additional coments and we'l |
eval uate those in taking a | ook at --

M5. CUCCHI: |Is this Mark Ham | ton?

MR HAMLTON: -- these issues. Yes, ma' am

MS. CUCCHI: Ckay. But when sonebody asks a
question at a hearing, the rules, the statute says
you' re supposed to have the people there to answer
it at the rule hearing. | had asked questions at

the last rule hearing and | did not hear back any

OR THE RECORD REPORTI NG TALLAHASSEE FLORI DA 850. 222. 5491




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

29

responses fromthose questions.

Now, on 12-9.0031(1)(b)1. tal ks about CFA and
CFE certifications and specifically the continui ng
educati on courses. Wy is CFE included when you
have said that CFEs do not have to have conti nuing
education requirenents? This rule is about
conti nui ng education, so why are you includi ng CFE?

M. GOLDSTEIN:. | would just offer that |
think it's optional for them | think sone of them
do take continuing education at the discretion of
the local officials.

M5. CUCCH : D d you not delete that out of
this round of proposed rul es?

M. GOLDSTEIN. It's sonething that we can
t ake back and | ook at agai n.

M5. CUCCHI : As far as 12-9.0031, that's all
had at this tine.

M5. GOLDSTEIN. Ckay.

M5. CUCCHI: But | wll have nore in the
future.

M5. GOLDSTEIN. Ckay. Rule 12-9.0032 entitled
"Depart nent Sponsored Courses."” W did not make
any maj or changes to this particular rule. So |
think the only thing we updated here was the title

of our online registration portal, and the
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reference to the Departnent staff that we've
di scussed in previous sections. Do we have any
coments on this rule?

MR, JACKSON: You can go ahead, Ms. Cucchi.

M5. CUCCHI : A recommendation was made at the
| ast hearing on January 13, 2121, to allow the
public to audit a course without credit and no
charge when a space is avail able to nake
transparent the training is conpliant with the
rules. This would pronote public trust. Wat is
DOR s reasoni ng for choosing not to all ow when
space i s avail abl e, unhindered public access to
validate training is conpliant with the rul es?

M. GOLDSTEIN. It's sonmething that we m ght

consi der for future. | know a | ot of these courses

are offered by private providers that charge for
their materials.

M5. CUCCHI : This question was specifically
related to a departnent-sponsored course. And it
could be that either, one, you have to pay for the
requi red materials; or, two, you're just not
entitled to it, you can just sit there to validate
the training is conpliant with the | aw.

M5. GOLDSTEIN. Ckay. It's sonething we wl

t ake under consi derati on.

30
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M5. CUCCHI : That's all | have for that at
this tinme.

MS. GOLDSTEIN: Ckay. Next, we have Rul e
12-9. 004, Application for Certification. And there
were no nmaj or changes made to this rule. W
renoved the chairperson duties and reorgani zed t hat
into one of the previous sections per JAPC s
reconmendati on. Do we have any comments on this
rul e?

MR, JACKSON: You can go ahead, Ms. Cucchi.

M5. CUCCHI : On 12-9.004(1)(b), the Depart nent
elimnated the termsati sfactory conpl eti on of the
requi red courses, satisfactory conpletion of
approved courses. Does the Departnent believe a
person who conpletes a course with a failing grade
shoul d be certified?

MS. GOLDSTEIN: No. That would be a failing
grade and they would not be certified.

MS. CUCCHI: Does DOR believe JAPC directed
DOR to delete the termsatisfactory, or that JAPC
sinply noted the elenents of satisfactory
conpl etion should be included in the rule, which
one is it?

M5. GOLDSTEIN: No, they did not direct us to

delete it. They were asking if there were specific
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requi rements that we needed to el aborate on as it
related to the word "satisfactory.” | think this
goes back to what we just discussed earlier as it
relates to the word "properly."” There are no
addi ti onal requirenments beyond what is in the rule.
A person has to be in the roomfor the
instructional hours, they have to make a passi ng
grade on the exam and they have to conplete the
coursework. So, "satisfactory" is just again sort
of superfluous. It doesn't really nean anything in
this case. But | can assure you, no one who's
failing is getting certified.

M5. CUCCH : Rule 12-9.004 al so (i naudi bl e)
the application formto conply with the Governor's
et hics order and 194. 301, the application form
shoul d address the appraisal specific industry
standard code of ethics consistent with
prof essionally accepted appraisal practices.

M5. GOLDSTEIN. Ckay.

M5. CUCCHI: That is what | have for that rule
at this time. | probably wll have nore later.

M5. GOLDSTEIN: Ckay. G eat.

Moving on to Rule 12-9.0055 entitled "Fees and
Tuition.”™ Again, there were no substantive changes

made to this rule other than to renane our onli ne
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registration portal. Do we have any conments on
this rule?

( NO RESPONSE. )

MS. GOLDSTEIN:  Next we have Rule 12-9. 006 and
this is our certification rule. The change to this
rule sinply clarifies the recognition date of a
change to designation once an official is elected
to office. W also struck | anguage related to the
salary for enployees of the officials as
unnecessary. That feature is not statutory unless
it's special salaries for officials, and it's a
purely discretionary function of the officials.

And the Departnent certification program and
conmmttees are not associated wth approving raises
for approved enpl oyees. Do we have any comments on
this rule?

MR, JACKSON: You can go ahead, Ms. Cucchi.

Ms. Cucchi, it looks |ike you're self-nuted again.

M5. CUCCHI : | guess | just get nuted when you
mute ne. The way that this was witten, the new
changes that were nade, they just don't seem all
that clear. | just have a hard tine really truly
under st andi ng what's goi ng on.

Is this for the purpose of prorating the

special qualification that they becone, the CFE
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becones a CFA, you know, in a certain tine frane?
And it just -- 1'll send sone witten comments on
to that because it just doesn't quite nake a whol e
| ot of sense.

M5. GOLDSTEIN:  Yes. W would | ove any
suggesti ons you have to nmake it nore clear.

M5. CUCCH : And | just have one question al so

on that. So does this person becone -- does a CFE
becone a CFA, do they still have to conplete the
application, do they still have to be

comm ttee-reviewed to make sure that they've net
the current qualifications? Do they still have to
be approved by the commttee?

MS. GOLDSTEIN:  No, because it would be a
duplicative process. There are no -- there's no
differentiati on between what's required of the
officials and what's required of the staff. The
exact sane coursework passed, certification
processed through the commttee, all that.

M5, CUCCHI: | will have further comments at a
later tinme on that.

MS. GOLDSTEIN: Ckay. Next, we have Rule
12-9. 007, our recertification rule. Al though there
aren't any major changes to this part of the rule,

| would point out that we renpved agai n the

OR THE RECORD REPORTI NG TALLAHASSEE FLORI DA 850. 222. 5491




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

35

reference to "satisfactorily” as an unnecessary
descriptive term As JAPC asked, we have no

addi tional requirenents other than what is
described in the rule. Do we have any comments on
t hese changes to the rule?

MR. JACKSON: You can go ahead, Ms. Cucchi.

M5. CUCCHI: Yeah, you just said "as JAPC
asked." Are you suggesting that JAPC asked you to
renmove or is it just that they recomended that you
add "satisfactorily,” what that -- what that woul d
entail ?

M5. GOLDSTEIN:. They asked if "satisfactorily”
indicates that there is nore than what is contained
in the rule. And the answer to that is no. As |
said, a person nust attend the class, the
instructional hours, they have to pass the exam and
go through the conmttee.

M5. CUCCHI: | will have nore |ater on that
particular item Gve ne one second here to | ook
at nmy notes.

M5. GOLDSTEIN:  Sure.

M5. CUCCHI : At the 1-13-21 hearing you
i ndi cated that continuing education -- you
specifically, Rachel, indicated that conti nuing

education training for staff was renoved fromthe
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draft rules as originally witten in January of
2019 because of the cost of travel involved in
training staff. Since 1-13-21, the January of '21
heari ng, the VAB training has been added as an
option for recertification training. And that
training is updated online each year. That online
training is free and it can be done w thout travel.

Since there is a no-cost option that s now
added to the approved training list which would
satisfy the required continui ng educati on hours,
and since you stated in the |ast hearing the
requi rement for continuing educati on was renoved
due to the cost of travel, why do you not re-add
the training requirenent deleted fromyour 2019
proposed rule for property appraiser staff to have
conti nui ng education?

M5. GOLDSTEIN: | think we're waiting until we
have nore of a selection online as opposed to maybe
just a few or handful of courses. You know, we
want to be able to offer a wde variety of topics.
Again, that really wasn't the purpose of this round
of rulemaking. Qur focus has al ways been to just
get the rule up to speed and address JAPC

You know, we hear you. W understand your

concerns about, you know, making the program nore
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stringent and robust, but that's just not the

pur pose of this round of rul enaking. And as you
poi nted out, we did add it to the list so that it
is an option for people.

M5. CUCCHI: 194.10, Florida Statutes,
requires continuing education for recertification
annually. And you did nmake a distinction sonehow
about el ected property appraisers and their staff.

Agai n, 195.002 says that the Departnent shall
conduct school s to upgrade assessnent skills of
both state and | ocal personnel. That's both state
and | ocal personnel. This draft law elimnates the
certification of DOR staff, you know, what's the
justification?

M5. GOLDSTEIN: | admit it would be what I
told you, | think, last tinme, that we interpret
that to nean that the continuing education
requirement is sonething for, you know, limted to
the officials and that it's not for the staff
per se. It's discretionary at this tine. |It's
somet hi ng we're | ooking at potentially noving
forward in the future. 1It's just not part of it at
this tine.

M5. CUCCHI : But then you're renoving state

personnel when the statute that you're using to
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certify the local governnents in the sanme phrase
says "state and | ocal personnel.” So now you are
not certifying DOR state personnel. Wat
justification is there for not certifying state
personnel if you believe that the statute that
allows you to certify the property appraiser staff
is the one saying do it for both?

M5. GOLDSTEIN: That's sonething we'll take
under consideration and review further.

M5. CUCCHI : |s that sonething you can give
nme an answer in witing to after this hearing?

MR. HAM LTON: W appreciate your comment,

Ms. Cucchi, and we'll take it under advi senent.
And if you have additional coments you can submt
those to the Departnent.

M5. CUCCH : | will have additional coments.
That's all at this tine.

M5. GOLDSTEIN:. Ckay. Next we have 12-9. 0077,
our "Reinstatenent” rule. The only changes to this
were to replace the term"professionals" wth
"professional designees.” And that was only to
remai n consi stent throughout the rule text and this
was sonet hing that JAPC pointed out to us. Do we
have any comments on the changes to this rule?

MR JACKSON: Go ahead, Ms. Cucchi .
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M5. CUCCHI : Yes. You did change
12-9.007(2)(b), and you state for the professional
desi gnees seeking reinstatenent. |If you go back to
the definition of what a "professional designee" is
in 12-9.001, it's a person who's net the
requi rements set forth in these rules. dearly, a
person who is seeking reinstatenent did not neet
those, the requirenents of these rules. So the
term replacing the term "professional" and
"designee" is wong in this thing. |If you need to
be reinstated, you are no | onger a professional
desi gnee by the definition of a professional
desi gnee.

| would recommended for (b), for it to say any
person previously designated who i s seeking
rei nstatement as a professional designee, the
person must do whatever. And then | would further
recommend for (c), for all persons previously
desi gnated to pay reinstatenent, blah, blah, blah.

M. GOLDSTEIN:. Ckay. Thank you for your
comment. Do you have anything further on that one?

M5. CUCCHI : Not at this tine, but again that
will, that coul d change.

M5. GOLDSTEIN. Ckay. So lastly there are two

forns that we have associated with this rule and
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our index in Rule 12D 16.002. The first one is our
DR- 4002 which is the application for approval of a
course or continuing education credit hours. And
we did not nake any changes to that formso it's
not one we are di scussi ng today.

However, we did make changes to our ot her
form the DR- 4001, and that is the Application for
the Florida Professional Certification. So,
firstly, we nmade changes to the instructions in
this formthat were just made for consistency sake
to reflect the rewording we did to the rest of
12-9, specifically to capture the rewordi ng changes
we made to rule 12-9.003 and the descriptions of
t he approved course hours criteria. And also we
renoved the references to Departnent staff
consistent with the rest of the rule text. Lastly,
we struck the | anguage associated with the annual
affirmation to ethics | aws.

As Ms. Cucchi has already pointed out, after
our |ast public hearing we recei ved a nunber of
comrent s and questions about ethics specifically,
and so those questions and comments have pronpted a
nore i n-depth analysis and revi ew of the
Departnent's authority and our role as it rel ates

to ethics.
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And so after further review it was determ ned
that of course, while ethics remains, you know, a
serious priority for all government agencies and
public and enpl oyees, it's not within the
Departnent's purview to adm ni ster or enforce.

Now, as al ways, ethics education remai ns an
I nportant conponent of the certification course
curriculum And, of course, any and all violations
of ethics |laws and that becone known to the
Departnment will be referred out to the appropriate
enforcenent authorities.

Do we have any comments on the changes to this
f or n?

MR. JACKSON: You can go ahead, Ms. Cucchi.

MS. CUCCHI: Thank you. Again, the
Departnent's proposed form shoul d be anended to
requi re and provide code of ethics for property
appraisers that is specific to the |Iocal assessnent
of taxable property based on Florida | aw

You' ve had a code of ethics since 1993. You
have one in existence today. It should sinply be
nodi fied. The Governor's order wants you to do
that, it authorizes you to do that, and again you
seemto be just plain-out ignoring the Governor's

or der .
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M5. GOLDSTEIN: Ckay. Thank you for your
comment. Do you have anything further on the
forms?

M5. CUCCHI : Not at this tinme, but I wll.

M5. GOLDSTEIN:. Ckay. So that concludes the
summary of the changes to the Rules 12-9 and the
Form DR-4001. And now I'mjust going to open it up
and gi ve anybody an opportunity to provide any
addi ti onal comments to the proposed changes to the
rule in front of us today.

Ckay. And hearing none, | will now turn it
back over to Ms. Janice Forrester.

M5. FORRESTER  Thank you. On behalf of the
Departnent, | want to thank everyone for
partici pati ng and sharing your comments with us.
Your participation is very hel pful during the rule
promul gati on process.

You may provide witten comments to us.

Pl ease bear in mnd that they do becone part of the
public record. W ask that any witten comments --
" msorry. W've got a hand up so | wll pause
right there and we will take this |ast coment.
MR JACKSON: Go ahead, Ms. Cucchi.
M5. CUCCHI: It had to do with the witten

comments. |'mjust wondering how nuch tine are you
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giving for witten comments?

M5. FORRESTER  Yes, Ms. Cucchi. | was
getting right to that.

M5. CUCCHI : Then I'll have a question on that
dependi ng on how nuch tine there is for witten
comrent s.

M5. FORRESTER. Ckay. W are offering a
comment period to be closed Friday, My 14.

M5. CUCCHI : Again, will the transcript of
this hearing be up in tinme to be able to read it
and make comments off of it?

M5. FORRESTER. We're going to request that
our transcript be rushed and we wll get that
posted on our website as soon as we receive them

MS. CUCCHI: Thank you.

M5. FORRESTER  You're wel cone. Ckay. For
t hose comments, we would like for you to send them
by email to dorpto@l ori daRevenue.com or you can
mai | your comments to Property Tax Oversi ght,

Fl ori da Departnent of Revenue, P.QO. Box 3000,

Tal | ahassee, Florida, 32315-3000. W will review
and evaluate all comments received. After review,
we W ill determne the next step in the rule

pronul gati on process and update this informati on on

our website accordingly. Gkay. This concludes the
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hearing. Thank you.
(Wher eupon, the public hearing was concl uded

at approximately 10:55 a.m)
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CERTI FI CATE OF REPORTER

|, DEBORAH ALFF, do hereby certify that | was
authorized to and did report the foregoi ng proceedi ngs,
and that the transcript, pages 1 through 45, contains a
true and correct record of ny stenographic notes and

recor di ngs thereof.

Dated this 11th day of NMay, 2021 at

Tal | ahassee, Leon County, Fl ori da.

Z7aéﬂuaéxqééé
DEBORAH ALFF

Court Reporter
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